REGIONAL SCHOOL UNIT 19
BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING AGENDA

“+*TUESDAY, OCTOBER 20, 2020%**
Nokomis Regional High Library 6:30 PM

Join Zoom Meeting:
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/853872587827?pwd=cS92bTBkVFRZVEJMNEc4TkNxbkp4dz09

Dial: 1 646 558 8656

I. Opening of Meeting
A. Flag Salute
B. Adjustments to Agenda
C. Approval of Minutes of September 15, 2020 *Action

II. Public Comment

III. Reading of Communications
A. Administrative Communications
B. Superintendent/Board Communications

IV. Reports
A. Superintendent
B. Board Chair

V. Report of Special Committees

A. Budget/Finance Committee October 13, 2020
B. Building Committee October 14, 2020
C. Education Committee October 6, 2020
D. Policy Committee September 22, 2020
First Reading of Policies *Action

1. ACAA-R Student Discrimination/Harassment and Title [X
Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures
2. GBN-R1 FMLA Administrative Procedure
3. GBN-R2 Maine Family Medical Leave Administrative Procedure
4. IJNDB  Student Acceptable Use

Second Reading of Policies *Action
1. GBO Family Care Leave
2. JLCC Communicable/Infectious Diseases
E. Transportation Committee No Meeting


https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85387258782?pwd=cS92bTBkVFRZVEJMNEc4TkNxbkp4dz09

F. Tri-County Vocational Meeting

G. Negotiations Committee No Meeting

H. Extra-Curricular Ad Hoc Committee October 5, 2020

I. Pandemic Ad Hoc Committee September 30, 2020

V1. Old Business - None

VII. New Business

A. CDC Guidance * Action
B. Update on Beginning of School Year
C. MOA between RSU 19 Board & Education Association/MEA/NEA * Action
D. Staff Resignations *Action

1. Lisa Kelley English NRH

2. Cynthia Lees French NRH

3. Conner Lambert Custodian NRH/MS

4. Kathy York Administrative Assistant ~ CO
E. Staff Nominations

1. Emi Higgins Grade 1 SVES *Action
F. Staff Appointments

1. Talon Randall Ed Tech I NRHS

2. Amy Tenney Cashier (Part-time) NRHS/MS

3. Eric Geary, Jr. Custodian NRHS/MS

4. Leslie Jones Administrative Assistant CO

5. Ryan Hewins Campus Security Monitor NRH/MS

G. Staff Transfers - None

VIII. Future Agenda Items
IX. Next Meeting Dates

X. Adjournment

A.D.A. NOTICE: Ifyou have a special need that must be met to allow you to fully participate in this
meeting, please contact the Office of the Superintendent at least two (2) days prior to this meeting.

IF the district is closed for weather or other issues, the Board meeting will be on the next regularly
scheduled meeting date.



Regional School Unit 19
Board of Directors’ Minutes (Virtual Meeting and In-Person)
September 15, 2020 6:30 PM

MEMBERS PRESENT: Corinna Caron, Celia Demos, Christopher Easton, Melony Fitts, Mark
Guzzi, Mark Hansen, Kenneth Kealiher, William MacDonald, Robin McNeil, Rachel Nyce,
Veronica Nicholson, Ryan Parker, Kenneth Sands, Jason Scholten, Chad Stratton, Jennifer Watson

MEMBERS ABSENT: Excused: Leland Youngberg, St. Albans Vacancy

Unexcused: Paul Carter

TOTAL MEMBERS PRESENT: 866
TOTAL MEMBERS ABSENT: 132

OTHERS PRESENT: District Staff

I1.

I11.

NOTE: All votes recorded by roll call

Opening of Meeting
A. Flag Salute was rendered.

B. Adjustments to Agenda
VII. New Business

D. Staff Resignations add:
Julie Moulton, Gr. 8 Social Studies

E. Staff Nominations add:
Connie Martin, ELA NRH

F. Staff Appointments add:
William Bunker, Custodian NRH/MS

C. Approval of Minutes of August 18, 2020
A motion was made by Robin McNeil to approve the minutes of August 18, 2020,
seconded by Ken Kealiher and voted 12 for, 2 abstain (Melony Fitts, Rachel Nyce)
The motion passed.

Public Comment - None

Reading of Communications

A. Administrative Communications - Please see the report in your Board packet from the
Administrators of each school. Joe Chadbourne reported that the District had a great
audit and that things are moving along smoothly. Maxine Pare reported that the only




IVv.

catastrophic incident in the first days of school was a fractured elbow. The District is
COVID 19 clear as of today.

B. Superintendent Communication - Mr. Hammer - Students are getting into routines and
Administrators are further supporting teachers to make things run smoothly.
Changes/tweaks are being made to bus drop off and pick up times. An email has been
sent to see who needs food. The buildings are quiet.

Reports

A. Superintendent - There will be an orientation meeting for new Board members. The
District is checking with daycares to ensure that they are following CDC guidelines.

B. Board Chair - The Board is looking for a report to see how many students and teachers

are remote. There have been some interesting presentations about solar power. Chair
and Superintendent are working with the Association to create an MOU. There have
been concerns expressed about Board Members following the rules. If students and
staff are required to wear face coverings, why aren’t Board Members required to?

Report of Special Committees

A.

B.

C.

Budget/Finance Committee September 8, 2020
Communication Presented by Bill McDonald

Building Committee September 9, 2020
Communication Presented by Chad Stratton

Education Committee September 1, 2020
Communication Presented by Kenneth Sands

Policy Committee August 25, 2020

Communication Presented by Robin McNeil
First Reading of Policies

1. GBO Family Care Leave
2. JLCC Communicable/Infectious Diseases

A motion was made by Robin McNeil to accept the above policies for first
reading, seconded by Ken Sands, and voted unanimously.

Second Reading of Policies

1. Campus Security Monitor
A motion was made by Robin McNeil to accept the Campus Security
Monitor, seconded by Veronica Nicholson, and voted 15 for, 1 opposed
(Ryan Parker). The motion passed.

2. Dishwasher/Stocker
A motion was made by Robin McNeil to accept the Dishwasher / Stocker,
seconded by Veronica Nicholson, and voted unanimously.



VI

VII.

e momm

Transportation Committee September 1, 2020
Tri-County Vocational Meeting Will be meeting September 24, 2020

Negotiations Committee No Meeting
Extra-Curricular Ad Hoc Committee No Meeting
Resource Officer Ad Hoc Committee No Meeting
Pandemic Ad Hoc Committee No Meeting

Old Business - None

New Business
A. Employee Request for 1 Year Leave of Absence Without Pay

A motion was made by Robin McNeil to approve a 1 year leave of absence, without
pay, for a District employee, seconded by Chad Stratton and voted unanimously.

Recreation Departments Use of RSU 19 Playing Fields

A motion was made by Ryan Parker to allow the Recreation Departments to use the
RSU19 athletic fields/facilities when students from the school are not present,
seconded by Ken Sands, and voted unanimously.

Emergency Expenditures of CRF Funds

A motion was made by Corinna Caron to allow the Superintendent to forego the
competitive bid and RFP process in spending Coronavirus Relief Funds due to the
state of emergency that exists as a result of the Coronavirus and the limited time to
make purchases and have these purchases in place for the safety/benefit of staff and
students as allowed under the District’s Policy “DJ” and as allowed under Section “C”
subsection “e” of the Federal Procurement Manual, seconded by Ken Sands and
voted, unanimously.

Staff Resignations

1. Danielle Martin Science NRH

2. Morgan Mitchell Ed Tech I NRMS

3. Sandra Gerry Ed Tech I NRH

4. Gary Dumoulin Bus Driver

5. Julie Moulton Grade 8 Social Studies

A motion was made by Robin McNeil to accept the above staff resignations, seconded
by Corinna Caron, and voted unanimously.

E. Staff Nominations

1. Kate Maccarone K-12 Behavior Specialist
2. Connie Martin ELA NRH

A motion was made by Ken Kealiher to accept the above Staff Nominations, seconded
by Chad Stratton, and voted unanimously.



VIII.

IX.

F. Staff Appointments

1. Laura Bissell Ed Tech III SOM
2. Lisa Cianchette Bus Monitor

3. Frances Macchi Bus Monitor

4. Shelda Madigan Bus Driver

5. Jeffry Whitney Bus Driver

G. Staff Transfers
1. Isaac Walton Math to Science at NRH
2. Food Service Transfers:
Amanda Fanjoy  Server at NRH/MS to interim Cook at EDS
Stephanie Bridges Cook at EDS to interim Manager at SOM

*Mr. Hammer has asked Board Members to be aware of comments on social media and to
redirect questions back to the Superintendent’s Office, an administrator or teacher.

*Maine Music Educators are in communication with DOE, following MPA and athletics.

Future Agenda Items
Varsity sports/music, update on COVID response, reopening plan, educational work, remote

learning

Next Meeting Dates
The next Board meeting date will be October 20, 2020.

Adjournment
The meeting was adjourned at 8:15 PM.

Respectfully submitted,
Mike Hammer

Secretary to the Board

Note Taker: Darcey LaPrade



RSU 19 SCHOOL BOARD

ADMINISTRATION UPDATE
10/19/2020

SCHOOL/DEPT BRIEF:

Adult Education DISTRICT ACTION PLAN #

The Adult Education Director will
design, implement and supervise
relevant programming for the adult
1.1.5 population of RSU 19.

At all levels, School Board to individual
staff members, will be open to and
seek out potential partners in the
community such as employers,
organizations and/or community

23.2 members.

1.1.5

Adult Education
% )
%, P

’ Winctny of 0pp°" &

Etna/Dixmont School

Schools and staff will annually hold
events that welcome and include
parents and community members into
214 the schools and at school events.

At all levels, from School Board to
individual staff members, will be open
to and seek out potential partners in
the community such as employers,
organizations and/or community
232 members.

Teachers will maintain up-to-date
academic records and provide timely
213 reports.

Nokomis Regional Middle School

Schools and staff will annually hold
events that welcome and include
parents and community members into
Progress reports were generated as we are half way through the first trimester. 214 the schools and at school events.

The focus and/or purpose of all
professional development opportunities
will be aligned to district goals and
initiatives to be approved by School
15.2 Administration.

All members of professional learning
groups will be present and engage in good
faith with their peers to improve school
1.4.4 effectiveness.




SPECIAL g
EDUCATION
" S\

On October 14, an optional SAT test administration was offered to seniors and PSAT test administration to

The RSU 19 district will expand
instructional technology programming
to include grades 5--12. Digital
Citizenship will be taught at all of these

Juniors. 122 grade levels.
Schools and staff will annually hold
events that welcome and include
parents and community members into
214 the schools and at school events.
The RSU 19 recognizes the existing
expertise on staff and will work to
provide opportunities for leaders and
experts on staff to share best practice
153 with colleagues.
Schools and staff will annually hold
events that welcome and include
parents and community members into
214 the schools and at school events.
basticook Valley Elementary School
Teachers at SVES have readily accepted the challenge of remote learning and are using this unique time of
learning to hone new skills and use technology in different ways. Remote learners are welcomed as part of the
classroom each morning as teachers skillfully include them in daily morning meetings with the in person learners, The Administrative Team will identify data
as well as have them participate in guided reading lessons throughout the week. Due to their dedication and sets that schools and individual teachers
. . K - . . will utilize to monitor the growth of
exhaustive effc_a{'ts to reach out and engage W|th remote learners and their families, our hope is that their students both whole cohorts of students
eventual transition back to inperson learning will be much smoother. 1.1.1 and individual students.
Literacy Footprints is a digital reader that is published by Pioneer Valley Books. The teachers at SVES are using
this digital reader to teach guided reading to their remote learners. Literacy Footprints provides high-quality ) .
leveled texts to students online, so that teachers can differentiate their reading instruction and closely mirror All members of professional learning
. . . . . . groups will be present and engage in good
srr_]all group reading instruction that would typically happen in person, remotely. Teachers enaged in PD at SVES faith with their peers to improve school
prior to the start of this school year. 14.4 effectiveness.
Teachers recently collaborated in vertical teams on remote learning based on content area. The vertical team S\fgﬁg?&ﬁéﬁgn@ o fnag:ﬂdh; Id
meet!ng allowed te_achers a chance _to brai_nstorm solutio_n to challenges that they are_facing around remote parents and community members into
learning and teaching. Many great discussions and solutions came out of these meetings. 1.4.1 the schools and at school events.
Schools and staff will annually hold
events that welcome and include
parents and community members into
214 the schools and at school events.
At all levels, from School Board to
individual staff members, will be open
to and seek out potential partners in
the community such as employers,
organizations and/or community
2.3.2 members.
The RSU 19 recognizes the existing
expertise on staff and will work to
provide opportunities for leaders and
experts on staff to share best practice
153 with colleagues.
Special Education Department
Special Education Tuition & Board Report (EF-F-07) has been submitted to the DOE within the due date. 323
October 1 Special Education Child Count is ready to be submitted to the DOE by the due date. 323




New special education staff have been trained and are now certified Safety Care Specialists. 1.5.2
Good progress toward mask or shield tolerance has been made for some students with special needs who were
previously unable to attend school for in person services. This has been made possible by close collaboration
between special education teachers and parents. 221
Our behavior specialist, Katelyn Maccarone, has been to all buildings and programs, and has 47 students across
all grade spans on her caseload. She is actively involved in supporting or creating interventions for many of
them. She also delivered a half day of training to our ed techs on our recent workshop day. Liz Mares conducted
the morning session on awareness of the impacts of specific learning disability on learning and self efficacy. 15.2
RSU 19 District Administrators

. ) . . ) ) ) Workshop time and rtunities fi
The Curriculum Steering Committee met in October to begin planning for curriculum work for the 2020-2021 school year. Cufrﬂci,ﬂfn Lﬁl,erkar\:,iﬁ?:f;;g:d b;lt;lingrU
Smaller groups of staff have been continuing the work that was done this summer. 1.1.2 and provided to all staff.
Fall assessments are nearing completion. NWEA in grades 1-8, AIMSweb Plus in kindergarten and grade one, Fountas & The RSU 19 recognizes the existing expertise

. R . . X on staff and will work to provide opportunities
Pinnell Reading Benchmark Assessments in grades K-8 and the DIAL-4 assessments for Pre-K students are included in for leaders and experts on staff to share best
these fall assessments. 1.5.3 practice with colleagues.
Support the development of a
Comprehensive Intervention System

Title | interventionists have begun a year long professional development project with Marcia Boody, Kelly Burns i‘:ﬁ:’;‘:ggf:ag‘zrsIsg;:f;]f;gdrg;z;;
and Lori Merrow. This work is focusing on sustainability of accelerating student learning in ELA. We have recovery teachers, interventionists, and
included middle level interventionists in this professional development for the 2020-2021 school year. 1.3.1 Title I interventionists.




Education Committee Minutes
Tuesday, October 6, 2020, 6:30 PM
Virtual/In person Meeting

Members Present. Ken Sands, Mark Guzzi, Robin McNeil, Ryan Parker, Chad
Stratton, Leland Youngberg, Jenny Watson

Members Excused: Kathy Neill
Members Absent:

Others Present: Lori Merrow, Ken Kealiher, Maxine Pare, Mike Hammer, Ellen
Surprenant, Rachel Nyce, Angela Brown, Jane Stork, Mary Nadeau, Shane Cloutier,
Abby Jordan, Dean Neal

Public Comment - None

Outdoor Learning Opportunities - Our schools are taking advantage of many
outdoor learning opportunities. Some have added outdoor classrooms, trails,
gardens, and use traditional areas such as playgrounds, playing fields and the
new track.

We have other larger areas such as Mullens Woods, Nokomis Pond and the
Project Adventure/Outdoor Education Ropes course. Mullens Woods is a 117
acre tract of land in Newport that the Nature Conservatory of the Pine Tree State
deeded to the District in 2007. The property has many species of trees and we
intend to create trails for cross country skiing, hiking, and educational projects.

We have another round of CRF funds which hopefully can support an
amphitheater, a pavilion and more gardens. The funds come with the same
restrictions to be unbudgeted, Covid-19 related and spent by December 30th
2020. Teachers have also worked on connecting students to the out-of-doors
through the curriculum, writing about, moving within, and attending to the natural
environment around them. We have a tremendous amount of activity going on
outside and we want to keep that going as long as we can.



V.

VL.

Performing Arts during Covid-19 - Mr. Hammer presented an update on music
activities at Sebasticook Elementary School provided by Will Stecher. Ellen,
Dean, Shane, and Abby all provided updates on what is happening at their
buildings. Evelyn had previously sent to the Board a report from EDS. All
performing arts teachers are doing their best under Covid conditions to bring their
content to students. It takes more time, effort and creativity to provide this
content area to students. The CDC/DHHS/DOE have very strict restrictions on
singing, wind instruments and physical distancting that make it hard to practice
and prepare for performances. They will continue to do what they can do until we
get further guidance.

Other - Board members asked about how our students were doing academically
during the first few weeks of school and how things are going generally. We are
struggling with some remote students. Some are doing really well, some we are
not hearing from. We have done some assessment and will continue to analyze
the areas that need improvement. There are some truancy letters going out and
progress reports will reflect the lack of engagement. Some students legitimately
have technology issues and some are just choosing not to show up. Teachers
teaching in person and remote students at the same time remains a challenge.
We are still working on our hybrid model along with all the other daily operations
that they attend to.

Future Agenda Items - Report from Tri-County Tech, Lori and Mike will report
out on some of the professional development and essential standards students
and teachers are working on as well as assessment data that is available.

The meeting was adjourned.

Respectfully submitted,

Mike Hammer, Superintendent



Members Present:

Members Excused:
Others Present:

Policy Committee Minutes
NRHS Library and Virtual
September 22, 2020 6:30 PM

Robin McNeil, Celia Demos, Christopher Easton, Kenneth
Kealiher, Veronica Nicholson, Ken Sands, Leland Youngberg

St. Albans Vacancy
Mike Hammer, Maxine Pare

Public Comment - None

Policy Review

A.

B.

C.

D.

GBN-R1

GBN-R2

ACAA-R

IJNDB

Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) Administrative Procedure
Procedure was drafted and changes made in section F. FMLA
leave when both parents are school unit employees. The
procedure will be presented to the Board for a first reading.

Maine Family Medical Leave Administrative Procedure
Procedure was approved as drafted and ready to be presented
to the Board for a first reading.

Student Discrimination/Harassment and Title IX Sexual Harass-
ment Complaint Procedures

The document was substantially revised due to the
requirements in the new Title IX sexual harassment regulations
that became effective on August 14, 2020. The Committee
chose to keep section two and use business days, over
calendar days. This is ready to be presented to the Board for a
first reading. Note: Mary Nadeau agrees to keep section two.

Student Acceptable Use Policy
Policy was updated to address the current needs of remote
learning and is ready for a first reading by the Board.




Other - None

Adjournment
The meeting was adjourned.
Respectfully submitted,

Mike Hammer
Superintendent of Schools



FIRST
READING
OF
POLICIES




CODE: ACAA-R

STUDENT DISCRIMINATION/HARASSMENT AND TITLE IX SEXUAL
HARASSMENT COMPLAINT PROCEDURES

The Board has adopted these student procedures in order to provide prompt and equitable
resolution of reports and complaints of unlawful discrimination and harassment of
students, including sexual harassment, as described in policiess AC -
Nondiscrimination/Equal Opportunity and Affirmative Action and ACAA — Harassment
and Sexual Harassment of Students.

Complaints alleging unlawful harassment or discrimination against employees based on a
protected category should be addressed through the Board’s Employee
Discrimination/Harassment and Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures
(ACAB-R).

Any individual who is unsure about whether unlawful discrimination or harassment has
occurred and/or or which complaint procedure applies is encouraged to contact the
Affirmative Action Officer/Title 1X Coordinator.

Mary Nadeau
Affirmative Action Officer/Title I1X Coordinator
291 Williams Road, Suite 2, Newport, ME
(207) 368-4354
mnadeau@rsul9.net

. DEFINITIONS

For purposes of these complaint procedures, the following definitions will be used. The
Affirmative Action Officer/Title IX Coordinator shall assess all reports and complaints to
ensure that they are addressed under the appropriate policy and complaint procedure.

A. Discrimination/Harassment Complaint Procedure Definitions

1. “Discrimination or harassment”: Discrimination or harassment on
the basis of an individual’s membership in a protected category,
which, for students, includes race, color, sex, sexual orientation,
gender identity, religion, ancestry, national origin or disability.

2. “Discrimination”: Treating individuals differently, or interfering
with or preventing them from enjoying the advantages or privileges
afforded to others because of their membership in a protected
category.


mailto:mnadeau@rsu19.net

CODE: ACAA-R
“Harassment™: Oral, written, graphic, electronic or physical conduct
relating to an individual’s actual or perceived membership in a
protected category that is sufficiently severe, pervasive or persistent
so as to interfere with or limit that individual’s ability to participate
in the school unit’s programs or activities by creating a hostile,
intimidating or offensive environment.

“Sexual harassment”: Under Maine law, this means unwelcome
sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and other verbal or
physical conduct of a sexual nature in the following situations:

a. Submission to such conduct is made either explicitly or
implicitly a term or condition of a student’s educational
benefits;

b. Submission to or rejection of such conduct by a student
iIs used as the basis for decisions on educational
benefits; or

C. Such conduct has the purpose and effect of substantially
interfering with a student’s academic performance or
creates an intimidating, hostile or offensive
environment.

“Sexual orientation”: Under Maine law, this means a person’s
“actual or perceived heterosexuality, bisexuality, homosexuality or
gender identity or expression.”

“Gender identity”: Under Maine law, this means “the gender-related
identity, appearance, mannerisms or other gender-related
characteristics of an individual, regardless of the individual’s
assigned sex at birth.”

“Complaint” is defined as an allegation that a student has been
discriminated against or harassed on the basis of race, color, sex,
sexual orientation, gender identity, religion, ancestry, national origin
or disability (and not otherwise addressed in the Title IX regulations
and Section 3 of ACAA-R).

Complaints of bullying not involving the protected categories or
definitions described above may be addressed under Board Policy
JICK — Bullying and Cyberbullying of Students.

Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedure Definitions

1.

“Sexual Harassment”: Under the federal Title 1X regulations, sexual
harassment includes the following conduct on the basis of sex which
takes place within the context of the school unit’s education
programs and activities:

2



CODE: ACAA-R

a. “Quid pro quo” sexual harassment by a school
employee: Conditioning a school aid, benefit or
service (such as a better grade or a college
recommendation) on an individual’s participation in
unwelcome sexual conduct;

b. “Hostile environment” sexual harassment: Unwelcome
conduct based on sex that a reasonable person would
determine is so severe, pervasive and objectively
offensive that it effectively denies an individual’s
equal access to the school unit’s education programs
and activities; or

C. Sexual assault, dating violence, domestic violence and
stalking as these terms are defined in federal laws.

2. “Report”: Under the Title IX regulations, any individual may make a
report of sexual harassment involving a student, whether the
individual is the alleged victim or not. School employees are
required to report possible incidents of sexual harassment involving
a student. A report must be made to the Affirmative Action
Officer/Title IX Coordinator. A report triggers certain actions by the
AAO/Title 1X Coordinator for the alleged victim of sexual
harassment, but an investigation is not conducted unless a “Formal
Complaint” is filed.

3. “Formal Complaint”: Under the Title IX regulations, the alleged

victim of sexual harassment can file a written complaint that triggers
the complaint procedure in Section 3 of ACAA-R. Only a student
and/or their parent/legal guardian (and in certain circumstances, the
AAOQO/Title IX Coordinator) may file a formal complaint.
“Student”: For the purposes of this procedure, a student is an
individual who is enrolled or participating in the school unit’s
education programs and activities, or is attempting to enroll or
participate.

Il. DISCRIMINATION/HARASSMENT COMPLAINT PROCEDURE

This procedure should be used for any complaint of unlawful harassment or
discrimination complaint based on a protected category which does not involve Title 1X
sexual harassment (which is addressed in Section 3).



CODE: ACAA-R

How to Make A Complaint

1.

School employees are required to promptly make a report to the
AAOQ/Title IX Coordinator if they have reason to believe that a
student has been discriminated against or harassed.

Students (and others) who believe that they, or another student has
been harassed or discriminated against should report their concern
promptly to the AAO/Title IX Coordinator.

The individual making the report must provide basic information in
writing concerning the allegation of harassment or discrimination
(i.e., date, time, location, individual(s) who allegedly engaged in
harassment or discrimination, description of allegation) to the
AAO/Title IX Coordinator.

If an individual is unsure as to whether unlawful discrimination or
harassment has occurred, or who need assistance in preparing a
written complaint, they are encouraged to discuss the matter with the
AAOQ/Title IX Coordinator.

Individuals will not be retaliated against for reporting suspected
discrimination or harassment, or for participating in an investigation.
Retaliation is illegal under federal and state nondiscrimination laws,
and any retaliation will result in disciplinary action, up to and
including discharge for employees, and expulsion for students.

Individuals are encouraged to utilize the school unit’s complaint
procedure. However, individuals are hereby notified that they also
have the right to report incidents of discrimination or harassment to
the Maine Human Rights Commission, 51 State House Station,
Augusta, Maine 04333 (telephone: 207-624-6290) and/or to the
federal Office for Civil Rights, U.S. Department of Education, 5
Post Office Square, 8" Floor, Boston, MA 02109-3921 (telephone:
617-289-0111).

Complaint Handling and Investigation

1.

The AAO/Title X Coordinator will promptly inform the
Superintendent and the person who is the subject of the complaint
(respondent) that a complaint has been received.

The AAO/Title IX Coordinator may pursue an informal resolution of
the complaint with the agreement of the parties involved. Any party
to the complaint may decide to end the informal resolution process

4



10.

11.

CODE: ACAA-R
and pursue the formal process at any point. Any informal resolution
Is subject to the approval of the parties and the Superintendent, who
shall consider whether the resolution is in the best interest of the
school unit and the parties in light of the particular circumstances
and applicable policies and laws.

The AAO/Title IX Coordinator may implement supportive measures
to a student to reduce the risk of further discrimination or harassment
to a student while an investigation is pending. Examples of
supportive measures include, but are not limited to, ordering no
contact between the individuals involved or changing classes.

The complaint will be investigated by a trained internal or external
individual designated by the Superintendent and the AAO/Title IX
Coordinator.  Any complaint about an employee who holds a
supervisory position shall be investigated by a person who is not
subject to that supervisor’s authority. Any complaint about the
Superintendent should be submitted to the Chair of the Board, who
should consult with legal counsel concerning the handling and
investigation of the complaint.

The investigator shall consult with the AAO/Title 1X Coordinator as
agreed during the investigation process.

The respondent will be provided with an opportunity to be heard as
part of the investigation. The complainant shall not be required to
attend meetings with the respondent, but may choose to do so as part
of an informal resolution process.

The complainant and the respondent may suggest witnesses to be
interviewed and/or submit materials they believe are relevant to the
complaint.

If the complaint is against an employee of the school unit, any rights
conferred under an applicable collective bargaining agreement shall
be applied.

Privacy rights of all parties to the complaint shall be maintained in
accordance with applicable state and federal laws.

The investigation shall be completed within 40 business days of
receiving the complaint, if practicable. Reasonable extensions of
time for good reason shall be allowed.

The investigator shall provide a written report and findings to the
AAO/Title IX Coordinator.



CODE: ACAA-R

C. Findings and Subsequent Actions

1.

The AAO/Title 1X Coordinator shall consult with the Superintendent
concerning the investigation and findings.

If there is a finding that discrimination or harassment occurred, the
AAOQ/Title IX Coordinator, in consultation with the Superintendent
shall:

a. Determine what remedial action, if any, is required to
end the discrimination or harassment, remedy its effect
and prevent recurrence; and

b. Determine what disciplinary action should be taken
against the individual(s) who engaged in
discrimination or harassment, if any.

Inform the complainant and the respondent in writing of the results
of the investigation and its resolution (in accordance with applicable
state and federal privacy laws).

D. Appeals

1.

After the conclusion of the investigation, the complainant or
respondent may seek an appeal of the findings solely on the basis of
either: (a) prejudicial procedural error or (b) the discovery of
previously unavailable relevant evidence that could significantly
impact the outcome.

Appeals must be submitted in writing to the Superintendent within
five business days after receiving notice of the resolution.

Upon receipt of a valid appeal, the Superintendent shall provide
notice to the other party, along with an opportunity to provide a
written statement within five business days.

The Superintendent shall review the available documentation and
may conduct further investigation if deemed appropriate.

The Superintendent’s decision on the appeal shall be provided to the
parties within 10 business days, if practicable. The Superintendent’s
decision shall be final.



CODE: ACAA-R

Records

The AAO/Title IX Coordinator shall keep a written record of the complaint
process.

I11.  TITLE IXSEXUAL HARASSMENT COMPLAINT PROCEDURE

This section should be used only for complaints of Title 1X sexual harassment as defined

in Section 1.B.1.

A.

How to Make A Report

1.

School employees who have reason to believe that a student has
been subjected to sexual harassment is required to promptly make a
report to the AAO/Title 1X Coordinator.

Students, parents/legal guardians or other individuals who believe a
student has been sexually harassed are encouraged to make a report
to the AAO/Title IX Coordinator.

If the individual making the report is the alleged victim, or if the
alleged victim is identified by the individual making the report, the
AAO/Title IX Coordinator will meet with the alleged victim to
discuss supportive measures that may be appropriate in the particular
circumstances and explain the process for filing a formal complaint.

a. Supportive measures are individualized measures
designed to ensure the student can continue to access
educational programs and activities (such as requiring
no contact between individuals or changing classes).

b. Supportive measures may be continued even if the
alleged victim chooses not to file a formal complaint,
if appropriate under the particular circumstances.

The school unit cannot provide an informal resolution process for
resolving a report unless a formal complaint is filed.

Individuals will not be retaliated against for reporting sexual
harassment, or for participating in an investigation. Retaliation is
illegal under federal and state nondiscrimination laws, and any
retaliation will result in disciplinary actions, up to and including
discharge for employees, or expulsion for students.



CODE: ACAA-R
Any student (or their parent/legal guardian) who believes they have
been the victim of sexual harassment is encouraged to utilize the
school unit’s complaint procedure. However, students (and their
parents/legal guardians) are hereby notified that they also have the
right to report sexual harassment to the Maine Human Rights
Commission, 51 State House Station, Augusta, Maine 04333
(telephone: 207-624-6290) and/or to the federal Office for Civil
Rights, U.S. Department of Education, 5 Post Office Square, 8"
Floor, Boston, MA 02109-3921 (telephone: 617-289-0111).

The Superintendent shall be informed of all reports and formal
complaints of sexual harassment.

B. How to Make A Formal Complaint

1.

An alleged student victim and/or their parent/legal guardian may file
a formal written complaint requesting investigation of alleged Title
IX sexual harassment. The written complaint must include basic
information concerning the allegation of sexual harassment (i.e.,
date, time, location, individual(s) who allegedly engaged in sexual
harassment, description of allegation).

Students who need assistance in preparing a formal written
complaint, are encouraged to consult with the AAO/Title IX
Coordinator.

In certain circumstances, the AAO/Title 1X Coordinator may file a
formal complaint even when the alleged victim chooses not to.
Examples include if the respondent (person alleged to have engaged
in sexual harassment) has been found responsible for previous sexual
harassment or there is a safety threat within the school unit). In such
cases, the alleged victim is not a party to the case, but will receive
notices as required by the Title IX regulations at specific points in
the complaint process.

In accordance with the Title IX regulations, the AAO/Title IX
Coordinator must dismiss a formal complaint under this Title IX
procedure if: a) the conduct alleged in the formal complaint does not
constitute sexual harassment under the Title IX regulations and this
policy; or b) if the conduct alleged did not occur within the scope of
the school unit’s education programs and activities, or c) did not
occur in the United States.

In accordance with the Title IX regulations, the AAO/Title 1X
Coordinator may dismiss a formal complaint under this Title IX
procedure if: a) a complainant withdraws the formal complaint, or
withdraws particular allegations within the complaint; b) the

8



CODE: ACAA-R
respondent is no longer employed by or enrolled in the school unit;
or c) there are specific circumstances that prevent the school unit
from gathering evidence sufficient to reach a determination
regarding the formal complaint. However, if the conduct potentially
violates other policies or laws, it may be addressed through the
applicable Board policy/procedure.

If a formal complaint is dismissed under this Title IX procedure, the
AAO/Title 1X Coordinator will promptly and simultaneously send
written notices to the parties explaining the reasons. Parties have the
opportunity to appeal dismissals in accordance with subsection |
below.

If the conduct alleged in a formal complaint potentially violates
other laws, Board policies and/or professional expectations, the
school unit may address the conduct under Section 2 or another
applicable Board policy/procedure.

Emergency Removal or Administrative Leave

The Superintendent may remove a student from education programs and
activities on an emergency basis, or place an employee on administrative
leave during the complaint procedure:

1.

If there is a determination (following an individualized safety and
risk analysis) that there is an immediate threat to the physical health
or safety of an individual arising from the allegations of sexual
harassment. Examples of such circumstances might include, but are
not limited to, a continued threat of violence against a complainant
by a respondent, or a respondent’s threat of self-harm due to the
allegations.

The respondent (and in the case of a student, their parent/legal
guardian will be provided notice of the emergency removal or
administrative leave, and will be provided an opportunity to
challenge the decision following the removal (this is an opportunity
to be heard, not a hearing). The respondent has the burden to
demonstrate why the emergency removal or administrative leave
was unreasonable.

Any such decision shall be made in compliance with any applicable
disability laws, including the Individuals with Disabilities Education
Act, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act and the Americans with
Disabilities Act.



CODE: ACAA-R

D. Notice to Parties of Formal Complaint

1.

The Title IXX Coordinator will provide to the parties written notice of
the formal complaint and allegations of sexual harassment
potentially constituting prohibited conduct under the Title IX
regulations and this procedure. The notice shall include:

Notice regarding the complaint procedure and the availability
of an informal resolution process;

Sufficient details known at the time (including identities of
parties, if known; the conduct alleged; and the date and
location of the alleged incident, if known), with sufficient
time to prepare before any initial interview (not less than five
business days);

As required by the Title IX regulations, a statement that the
respondent is presumed not responsible for the alleged
conduct and that a determination of responsibility will be
made at the conclusion of the complaint); and that the parties
may inspect and review evidence;

Notice that the parties may each have an advisor of their
choice (who may be an attorney), and that the parties may
inspect and review evidence;

Notice that knowingly making false statements or submitting
false information during the complaint process is prohibited
and may result in disciplinary action;

Notice of the name of the investigator, with sufficient time
(no less than three business days) to raise concerns of conflict
of interest or bias.

If additional allegations become known at a later time, notice of the
additional allegations will be provided to the parties.

The AAO/Title IX Coordinator will discuss supportive measures
with each party and implement such measures as appropriate.

E. Informal Resolution Process

After a formal complaint has been filed, and if the AAO/Title IX
Coordinator believes the circumstances are appropriate, the AAO/Title 1X
Coordinator may offer the parties the opportunity to participate in an
informal resolution process to resolve the complaint without completing the
investigation and determination process. Informal resolutions cannot be
used to resolve a formal complaint where a student is the complainant and
the respondent is an employee.

10



CODE: ACAA-R
Informal resolutions can take many forms, depending on the particular case.
Examples include, but are not limited to, facilitated discussions between the
parties; restorative justice; acknowledgment of responsibility by a
respondent; apologies; disciplinary actions against a respondent or a
requirement to engage in specific services; or supportive measures. Both
parties must voluntarily agree in writing to participate in an informal
resolution process, and either party can withdraw from the process at any
time. The Superintendent must agree to the terms of any informal resolution
reached between the parties. If an informal resolution agreement is
reached, it must be signed by both parties and the school unit. Any such
signed agreement is final and binding according to its terms.

If an informal resolution process does not resolve the formal complaint,
nothing from the informal resolution process may be considered as
evidence in the subsequent investigation or determination.

Investigation

1. The complaint will be investigated by a trained internal or external
individual designated by the Superintendent and AAO/Title IX
Coordinator.  Any complaint about an employee who holds a
supervisory position shall be investigated by a person who is not
subject to that supervisor’s authority. Any complaint about the
Superintendent should be submitted to the Chair of the Board, who
should consult with legal counsel concerning the handling and
investigation of the complaint.

2. The investigator shall consult with the AAO/Title IX Coordinator as
agreed during the investigation process.

3. If the complaint is against an employee of the school unit, rights
conferred under an applicable collective bargaining agreement shall
be applied, to the extent they do not conflict with the Title IX
regulatory requirements.

4, Privacy rights of all parties to the complaint shall be maintained in
accordance with applicable state and federal laws.

5. The investigator will:

a. Meet with each party after they have received
appropriate notice of any meeting and its purpose, with
sufficient time to prepare.

b. Allow parties to have their advisor at all meetings
related to the complaint, although advisors may not
speak on behalf of a party or interfere with the process.

11



CODE: ACAA-R

C. Allow parties a reasonable opportunity to identify
witnesses and submit favorable and unfavorable
evidence.

d. Interview witnesses and conduct such other activities

that will assist in ascertaining facts (site visits, review
of documents, etc.).

e. Consider evidence that is relevant and directly related
to the allegations in the formal complaint.

f. During the course of the investigation, provide both
parties with an equal opportunity to inspect and review
any evidence that is obtained in the investigation that is
directly related to the allegations in the formal
complaint (including evidence which the school unit
does not intend to rely upon in reaching a determination
of responsibility), and favorable and unfavorable
evidence.

g. Prior to completion of the investigation report, provide
each party and advisor (if any) the evidence subject to
inspection and review, and provide the parties with ten
business days to submit a written response.

h. Consider the parties’ written responses to the evidence
prior to completing the investigation report.

I. Create an investigative report that fairly summarizes
relevant evidence and send the report to the parties and
advisors (if any), for their review and written responses
within ten business days of receipt.

J. After receipt of the parties’ written responses (if any),
forward the investigation report and party responses to
the assigned decision maker.

The investigation shall be concluded within 40 business days if

practicable. Reasonable extension of time for good reason shall be
allowed.

12



CODE: ACAA-R

G. Determination of Responsibility

1.

The decision maker shall provide the parties with the opportunity to
submit written, relevant questions that the party wants asked of
another party or witness within five business days of when the
decision maker received the investigation report and party responses.

a. The decision maker shall explain to a party proposing
questions if the decision maker excludes a question as
not relevant.

Each party shall be provided the opportunity to review the responses
of another party and/or witness, and to ask limited written follow-up
questions within five business of receiving the answers.

Each party will receive a copy of the responses to any follow-up
questions.

The decision maker shall review the investigation report, the parties’
responses and other relevant materials, applying the preponderance
of the evidence standard (“more likely than not”).

The decision maker shall issue a written determination, which shall
include the following:

a. Identification of all the allegations potentially
constituting sexual harassment as defined in the Title
IX regulations and this policy;

b. A description of the procedural steps taken from receipt
of the formal complaint through the determination,
including notifications to the parties, interviews with
parties and witnesses, site visits, methods used to gather
other evidence, and meetings held;

C. A determination regarding responsibility as to each
allegation and findings of fact supporting the
determinations;

d. A statement of, and rationale for, the result as to each
allegation, including a determination regarding
responsibility, any disciplinary sanctions the school unit
imposes on the respondent, and whether remedies
designed to restore or preserve equal access to the
school unit’s programs and activities will be provided
to the complainant;

13



CODE: ACAA-R
e. The school unit’s appeal procedure and permissible
bases for the parties to appeal the determination.

The written determination shall be provided to the parties
simultaneously. ~ The determination concerning responsibility
becomes final either on the date that the school unit provides the
parties with the written determination of the results of the appeal, if
an appeal is filed, or if an appeal is not filed, the date on which the
appeal would no longer be considered timely.

H. Remedies, Discipline and Other Actions

1.

Remedies

Remedies are measures used to ensure that the complainant has
equal access to the school unit’s education programs and activities
following the decision maker’s determination. Such remedies may
include supportive measures, and may include other appropriate
measures, depending upon the determination and the needs of the
complainant. ~ The Title 1X Coordinator is responsible for
implementing remedies and providing any needed assistance to the
Complainant.

Discipline and Other Actions - Students

The following are of the types of discipline and other actions that
may be imposed on a student when there is a determination that they
are responsible for one or more violations involving sexual
harassment:

In or out of school suspension.

Expulsion.

Restorative justice.

Requirement to engage in education or counseling program.

Discipline and Other Actions — Employees

The following are examples of the types of disciplinary actions that
may be imposed on an employee when there is a determination that
they are responsible for one or more violations involving sexual
harassment:

Written warning.
Probation.

Demotion.

Suspension without pay.

14



CODE: ACAA-R
) Discharge.

The following are examples of other types of actions that may be
imposed on an employee when there is a determination of
responsibility:

o Performance improvement plan.

. Counseling.

. Training.

) Loss of leadership/stipend position.
Appeals

The parties have the opportunity to appeal a determination regarding
responsibility, and from dismissals of formal complaints. Under the Title
IX regulations, appeals are allowed on the following grounds:

1.

2.

A procedural irregularity that affected the outcome of the matter;

New evidence that was not reasonably available at the time the
determination regarding responsibility or dismissal of the formal
complaint was made, that could affect the outcome of the matter; or

The Title IX Coordinator, investigator, or decision maker had a
conflict of interest or bias for or against complainants or respondents
generally, or the individual complainant or respondent that affected
the outcome of the matter.

An appeal must be filed in writing within five business days of receiving
the determination, stating the grounds for the appeal and including any
relevant documentation in support of the appeal. Appeals submitted after
this deadline are not timely and shall not be considered.

1.

Appeals must be filed with the Superintendent, who will consider the
appeal.

The Superintendent shall notify the other party in writing of the
appeal and will allow both parties to submit a written statement in
support of, or challenging, the determination of the decision maker.

The Superintendent shall conduct an impartial review of the appeal,
including consideration of the written record of the matter, and may
consult with legal counsel or other school unit officials in making
their decision.

15



CODE: ACAA-R

4. The Superintendent shall issue a written decision describing the

result of the appeal and rationale for the result, and provide the

written decision simultaneously to the parties. The decision will

either deny the appeal; grant the appeal and remand to the decision

maker for further consideration; or grant the appeal by revising the
disciplinary or other action(s).

J. Records

Records in connection with sexual harassment reports and the complaint
process shall be maintained for a minimum of seven years.

Legal Reference:  Americans with Disabilities Act (42 U.S.C. 812101 et seq., as
amended; 28 C.F.R. § 35.107)

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Section 504) (29
U.S.C. § 794 et seq., as amended; 34 C.F.R. § 104.7)

Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 USC § 1681, et
seq.); 34 C.F.R. Part 106

Clery Act (20 U.S.C. §1092(f)(6)(A)(v) - definition of sexual
assault)

Violence Against Women Act (34 U.S.C. §8 1092(f)(6)(A)(v) —
definition of sexual assault; 34 U.S.C. § 12291(a)(10) — dating
violence; 34 U.S.C. 812291(a)(3) — definition of stalking; 34
U.S.C. 812291(a)(8) — definition of domestic violence)

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 USC § 2000d)

Maine Human Rights Act, 5 MRSA § 4551 et seq.

20-A MRSA § 6553

MHRC/MDOE Joint Rule Chapter 94-348 and 05-071, ch. 4

Cross Reference: ACAA-R Student Discrimination/Harassment and Title 1X Sexual
Harassment Complaint Procedures
AC  Nondiscrimination/Equal Opportunity and Affirmative Action
ACAD Hazing
GBEB Staff Conduct with Students
JFCK  Student Use of Cellular Telephones and Other Electronic
Devices
JICIA  Weapons, Violence and School Safety
JICK  Bullying

16



CODE: GBN-R1

FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE ACT (FMLA)
ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURE

The following administrative procedure covers the main provisions of the federal Family
and Medical Leave Act (FMLA). The guidelines in no way attempt to modify the Act,
which should always be referred to when questions about implementation arise. RSU 19
is responsible for analyzing each employee request for leave to determine whether he/she
is eligible under the federal and/or state statute. When an employee is eligible for leave
under both the federal and state statutes, the applicable law with regard to each benefit shall
be the one which provides the greater benefit (usually federal FMLA).

A. Eligibility Regquirements
To be eligible under the FMLA, employees must work at a site where 50 or more
employees of the same school board are employed within 75 miles of that work
site. An employee must have been employed by the school unit for at least twelve
months and have worked at least 1250 hours in the previous twelve-month period.
According to the law, teachers employed on a full-time basis are presumed to
meet the minimum hours requirement.

B. Benefit
Under certain conditions, eligible employees, if qualified, may be entitled to up to
12 weeks or 26 weeks leave in a 12-month period with continuing participation in
the RSU’s group insurance plan.

The 12-month period for FMLA purposes is designated as the 12 month period
measured forward from the date an individual employee’s first leave begins.

C. Reasons for Taking Leave
Under the FMLA, an eligible employee is entitled to receive up to twelve weeks
of leave during a twelve-month period for the following reasons:

The birth and care of a child;

The adoption or foster placement of a child with the employee;

To care for a spouse, child or parent with a serious health condition; or
The employee is unable to perform the functions of his/her position because
of a serious health condition.

i N e

D. Military Family Leave
1. Military Caregiver Leave

An eligible employee who is a relative of a servicemember can take up to
26 weeks in a 12-month period in order to care for a covered servicemember

1



CODE: GBN-R1

who is seriously ill or injured in the line of duty, or a veteran who is
undergoing medical treatment, recuperation or therapy for serious injury or
illness that occurred any time during the five years preceding the date of
treatment.

2. Qualified Exigency Leave (applies to eligible employees with family
members who are in the National Guard or Reserves, and Regular Armed
Forces)

a. An eligible employee can take up to the normal 12 weeks of leave, if a
family member who is a member of the National Guard or Reserve is
called up to active duty on a contingency mission.

b. Qualifying exigencies include:

1) Short-notice deployment;

2) Military events and related activities;
3) Childcare and school activities;

4) Financial and legal arrangements;

5) Counseling;

6) Rest and recuperation;

7) Post-deployment activities; and

8) Additional activities agreed to by the
employer and the employee

E. Substitution of Paid Leave
Any leave taken for FMLA-qualifying purposes (including leave taken under
employment policies, bargaining agreements, or contracts) shall also be applied
to an employee annual FMLA entitlement. When paid leave taken for FMLA-
qualifying purposes is exhausted, the balance of FMLA leave shall be unpaid.

F. FMLA Leave When Both Parents Are School Unit Employees
If both parents of a child are employed by RSU 19, they are entitled to a combined
total of 12 weeks of leave per year. However, leave may be granted to only one
parent at a time and if leave is taken: (1) for the birth of a child or to care for
the child after birth; or (2) for placement of a child for adoption or foster care
or to care for the child after placement.

If spouses are employed by RSU 19, each are entitled to up to 12 work weeks
of FMLA leave in a 12-month period, without regard to the amount of leave
their spouse uses, for the following FMLA qualifying leave reasons:



CODE: GBN-R1

e the care of a spouse or son or daughter with a serious health condition;

e aserious health condition that makes the employee unable to perform the
essential functions of his/her job; and

e any qualifying exigency arising out of the fact that the employee’s spouse,
son, daughter, or parent is a military member on “covered active duty.”

G. Employee Notice Requirement
The employee must follow the employer's standard notice and procedural
policies for taking FMLA.

Except as provided elsewhere in this policy, an employee must submit an
application for leave at least 30 days in advance when the leave is foreseeable
or as soon as practicable if it is not foreseeable.

If an employee fails to provide 30 days' notice of foreseeable leave, the leave
may be delayed to start 30 days after notice is given, provided the employee
had actual notice of the FMLA notice requirements.

When the need for FMLA leave is foreseeable fewer than 30 days in advance,
or the need for FMLA leave is not foreseeable, and the employee fails to
provide notice as soon as practicable, the extent to which FMLA leave may be
delayed depends upon the facts of the particular case.

R
RSU 19 will require medical certification to support a request for FMLA
leave because of a serious health condition (at employee's expense).

If the leave request is due to the employee's serious health condition, the
employee is required to provide medical certification stating the date the
health condition commenced, the probable duration, the appropriate medical
facts concerning the condition, and that the employee cannot perform the
functions of his/her job.

If the leave request is due to the serious health condition of a family member,
the employee is required to provide medical certification stating the date the
health condition commenced, the probable duration, the appropriate medical

3




CODE: GBN-R1

facts concerning the condition, and an estimate of the time the employee will
be needed to care for the family member.

If the leave request is for leave to care for a covered servicemember, the
employee is required to provide certification of the date on which the serious
medical condition or injury commenced, the probable duration, the
appropriate medical facts within the knowledge of the health care provider
regarding the condition or injury, and an estimate of the time the employee
will be needed to care for the covered servicemember.

Notice for Leave Due to Active Duty or Call to Active Duty of Family Member
In any case in which the necessity for leave is foreseeable, whether because
the spouse or a son, daughter, or parent of the employee is on active duty or
because of notification of an impending call or order to active duty in support
of a contingency operation, the employee shall provide such notice to the
employer as soon as is practicable.

Employer Notice Requirement (29 C.F.R. § 825.300)

Employers are required to provide employees with notice explaining the
FMLA through a poster and either a handbook or information upon hire. If an
employee requests FMLA leave, an employer must provide notice to the
employee within five business days of whether the employee meets the FMLA
eligibility requirements. If an employee is not eligible to take FMLA, the
employer must provide a reason. The employer must also provide a rights and
responsibilities notice outlining expectations and obligations relating to
FMLA leave. If the employer approves FMLA leave, it must provide the
employee with a designation notice stating the amount of leave that will be
counted against an employee's FMLA entitlement.

Insurance

An employee out on FMLA leave is entitled to continued participation in the
appropriate group health plan, provided the employee continues paying the
usual premiums throughout the leave period. An employee's eligibility to
maintain health insurance coverage will lapse if the premium payment is more
than 30 days late.

Return

Upon return from FMLA leave, the employee will be restored to his/her
previous position or to an equivalent position with equivalent pay, benefits,
and other employment terms.



CODE: GBN-R1

An employee returning from FMLA leave for his/her own serious health
condition is required to submit medical certification that indicates fitness to
return to work and ability to perform the functions of the job.

If the employee is unable to return to work because of his/her own serious
health condition at the end of allowable FMLA leave, the Superintendent may
consider a request for extension of unpaid leave and benefits on a case-by case
basis. Unless an extension has been granted, failure to return to work upon the
expiration of FMLA leave may subject the employee to immediate
termination.

M. Special Rules for Instructional Employees
Under federal regulations, certain special rules apply to instructional
employees. These rules affect the taking of leave near the end of a semester
and the taking of intermittent leave or leave on a reduced leave schedule.

N. Interaction with Maine Law
When an employee is eligible for leave under both the federal and Maine
statutes, the applicable law shall be the one that provides the greater benefit.

An employee who is not eligible for federal FMLA leave may be eligible for
leave under the Maine FMLA.

The school unit will analyze each request to determine eligibility for federal
and/or Maine FMLA leave.

0. Recordkeeping
Employees, supervisors, and building administrators will forward requests,
forms, and other material to Central Office/HR to facilitate proper
recordkeeping.

NOTE: The following sections in green have been incorporated into the above
categories.




CODE: GBN-R1

weeks of FMLA leave shall be based on a eentraetyear. (Sce scction
B Benefit for change)




CODE: GBN-R1

Legal References: 26 USC 55 2601 ¢t seq.
29 C.F.R. Part 825 (Regulations to Implement the

Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993)



CODE: GBN-R2

MAINE FAMILY MEDICAL LEAVE ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURE

The following administrative procedure covers the main provisions of the Maine Family
The guidelines in no way attempt to modify the statute, which
RSU 19 is

Medical Leave Act.
should always be referred to when questions about implementation arise.
responsible for analyzing each employee request for leave to determine whether he/she is
eligible under the federal and/or state statute. When an employee is eligible for leave
under both the federal and state statutes, the applicable law with regard to each benefit

shall be the one which provides the greater benefit (usually federal FMLA).

L. ELIGIBILITY

To be eligible for Maine Family Medical Leave, employees must work at a site
where there are 15 or more employees of a school board. An employee must
have been employed by the same employer for 12 consecutive months and not
taken such leave within the immediately preceding 24-month period, or have
used less than 12 weeks of family medical leave.

Under the Maine Family Medical Leave Act, an eligible employee is entitled to
up to 12 consecutive weeks of leave during a 24-month period for the
following reasons:

A.

B.

Serious health condition of the employee;
Birth of the employee’s child;

Placement of a child 16 years of age or less in connection with the
adoption of the child by the employee; or

Serious health condition of a child, domestic partner’s child, parent,
sibling, domestic partner or spouse.

Serious health condition means an illness, injury, impairment, or
physical or mental condition that involves inpatient care in a hospital,
hospice or residential medical care facility or continuing treatment by a
health care provider.

The donation of an organ of the employee for a human organ transplant;
or

The death or serious health condition of the employee’s spouse,
domestic partner, parent, sibling or child if the spouse, domestic partner,
parent sibling or child is a member of the state military forces as defined
in Title 37-B, section 102, of the Maine Revised Statutes, or of the

1



CODE: GBN-R2

United States Armed Services, including the National Guard and
Reserves, dies or incurs a serious health condition while on active duty.

For the purpose of this procedure, "sibling" means a sibling of an
employee who is jointly responsible with the employee for each other's
common welfare as evidenced by joint living arrangements and joint
financial arrangements.

II. DOMESTIC PARTNER DEFINED

For the purpose of determining eligibility for Maine Family Medical Leave,
"domestic partner" means the partner of an employee who:

A.

o 0 w

e

Is a mentally competent adult as is the employee;

Has been legally domiciled with the employee for at least 12 months;

Is not legally married to or legally separated from another individual;

Is the sole partner of the employee and expects to remain so;

Is not a sibling of the employee;and

Is jointly responsible with the employee for each other's common

welfare as evidenced by joint living arrangements, joint financial
arrangements, or joint ownership of real or personal property.

1. ADMINISTRATION

A.

RSU 19 may will require certification from a physician to verify the
amount of leave requested. An employee who in good faith relies on
treatment by prayer or spiritual means, in accordance with the tenets and
practice of a recognized church or religious denomination may submit
certification from an accredited practitioner of those healing methods.

An employee requesting leave shall provide at least 30-days notice of
the intended dates upon which the leave will commence and terminate,
unless prevented by medical emergency from giving required notice.

Any leave taken from Maine Family Medical Leave qualifying
purposes, including leave taken under employment policies, bargaining
agreements, or contracts, shall also be considered leave under the Maine



IV.

CODE: GBN-R2

Family Medical Leave and shall be applied to an employee’s 42 10-
week Maine Family Medical Leave entitlement every 24-month period.
When paid leave taken for Maine Family Medical Leave qualifying
purposes is exhausted, the balance of Maine Family Medical Leave shall
be unpaid.

During Maine Family Medical Leave, an employee shall be permitted to
continue his/her medical insurance plan, providing the employee remits
the monthly premium to the Superintendent’s Office no later than the
first day of the month for which the premium is due.

Upon an employee’s return to work, he/she will be restored to his/her
previous position or to a position with equivalent seniority status,
benefits, pay, and other conditions and terms of employment.

An employee taking Maine Family Medical Leave for his/her own
serious health condition may be required to submit certification that
he/she is fit to return to work and is able to perform the functions of the
position.

Failure to return to work upon the expiration of Maine Family Medical
Leave may subject the employee to immediate termination unless such
an extension is granted.

An Employee who is not eligible for Maine Family Medical Leave may
be eligible for federal Family and Medical Leave.

LEAVE TAKEN INTERMITTENTLY OR ON A REDUCED LEAVE

SCHEDULE

Subject to the other requirements of this policy, leave taken intermittently
or on a reduced leave schedule (i.e., a leave schedule that reduces the usual
number of hours per workweek or hours per workday of an employee) may
be taken subject to the following:

Leave for birth or placement related to adoption may not be taken
intermittently or on a reduced schedule unless agreed to by both
employer and employee;

Leave for a serious health condition of the employee or his/her child,



CODE: GBN-R2

domestic partner's child, parent, domestic partner or spouse, or for
organ donation by the employee may be taken intermittently or on a
reduced leave schedule when medically necessary;

C. The taking of leave intermittently or on a reduced leave schedule may
not result in a reduction in the total amount of Maine Family Medical
Leave to which the employee is entitled beyond the amount of leave
actually taken; and

D. If an employee requests intermittent leave or leave on a reduced leave
schedule for a serious health condition of the employee or his/her child,
domestic partner's child, parent, domestic partner or spouse, or for
organ donation by the employee that is foreseeable based on planned
medical treatment, the employer may require the employee to transfer
temporarily to an available alternative position offered by the employer
for which the employee is qualified and that I) has equivalent pay and
benefits, and 2) better accommodates recurring periods of leave than
the regular employment position of the employee.

Legal References: 26 MRSA § 843 et seq.



CODE: IJNDB

RSU 19
STUDENT ACCEPTABLE USE POLICY

A: Introduction

The school unit provides devices, networks and Internet access to support the educational mission of the
schools and to enhance the curriculum and learning opportunities for students. The Board believes that the
resources available through the Internet are of significant value in the learning process and preparing students
for future success.

At the same time, the unregulated availability of information and communication on the Internet requires that
schools establish reasonable controls for lawful, efficient and appropriate use of this technology. This includes
the use, permission and protection of RSU 19 in the application of G Suite (GSuite for Education), social
media and compliance with GDPR (General Data Protection Regulation).

Student use of school devices, networks and Internet services is a privilege not a right. Students are required
to comply with policy and the accompanying rules. Students in violation may have their device privileges
revoked and may also be subject to further disciplinary and/or legal action.

All school unit devices remain under the control, supervision, and ownership of the school unit. The school
unit reserves the right to monitor all student device and Internet activity. Students have no expectation of
privacy in their use of school devices or networks.

While reasonable precautions will be taken to supervise student use of the Internet, the school unit cannot
reasonably prevent all inappropriate uses, including access to objectionable materials and communication
with persons outside of the school, in violation of Board policies/procedures and school rules. The school unit
is not responsible for the accuracy or quality of information that students obtain through the Internet.

Before students in grades 7-12 are allowed to use school devices and Internet services, the student and the
student’s parent/guardian must sign and return the Device/lnternet Use Acknowledgment annually. The
signed acknowledgment will be retained by the school. Devices for grades K-6 will remain within the building
and students will review a Device and Internet User Guidelines document with their homeroom teacher.

The Superintendent shall be responsible for overseeing the implementation of policy and the accompanying
rules and for advising the Board of the need for any future amendments or revisions to the policy/rules. The
Superintendent may develop additional administrative procedures and rules governing the day-to-day
management and operations of the school unit's computer system as-loerg-as if they are consistent with the
Board’s policy/rules. The Superintendent may delegate specific responsibilities to building administration and
others as he/she deems appropriate.

1st Reading: 10/23/18
Adopted: 11/20/18; Revised:



CODE: IJNDB

B: For Your Information:

e The 7th and 8th grade devices and accessories that students are being issued/supplied with are the
property of the State of Maine, registered to RSU 19 and then supplied to you the student. The
computer is only to be used for appropriate purposes as defined within this policy and all other school
guidelines.

e Devices are issued to grades 7-12 for school and take-home purposes if the take-home
acknowledgement form has been completed. They are assigned to the student and his/her family and
must be returned at the discretion of the Technology Director if so directed.

e Under normal school circumstances, Bdevices for grades K-6 will remain in the classrooms and/or
laptop carts and be under direct supervision of the classroom teacher. There may be periods of time
during a school year when we ask PK-6 students to take devices home. The District may ask for a
temporary devise take-home agreement to be signed during these periods of time.

e Teachers, school administrators, Ed Techs, and the technology director may inspect a student’s
device at any time. This inspection may include, but not be limited to, checking logs of past activity.
Students may not clear items from the history.

e Students in grades 7-12 and their parents/guardians will need to submit a signed copy of this
acceptable use policy before being given their device.

e Students in grades 7-12, and their parents/guardians, will need to submit a signed receipt form
acknowledging that they have signed out a device, charger, and case if supplied. This signature will
confirm that all items are in good working order and replacement or repair of any item, not under
warranty, will be at the student’s expense.

e Any inappropriate use of your device may result in various consequences (in consultation with
administration and the Technology Director) This range will be determined in section G of this
document. Severe or repeated incidents may result in a device downgrade.

e Students may appear in both live and recorded classroom instruction video used by the teacher for
viewing by students who are absent or using distance learning. These recordings are for school use
only and are not to be made public. If re-recorded and posted elsewhere (including social media) this
may violate the media release preferences of students and/or copyright laws. Unauthorized use of
these videos is forbidden.

C: Device and Internet Use Rules:

These rules implement Board policy (IJNDB) — Student Device and Internet Use. The rules are intended to
provide general guidelines and examples of prohibited uses but do not attempt to state all required or
prohibited activities by users. Failure to comply with Board policies and these rules may result in loss of
device and Internet access privileges, disciplinary action, and/or legal action.

1st Reading: 10/23/18
Adopted: 11/20/18; Revised:



CODE: IJNDB
1. Device Use is a Privilege, Not a Right: Student use of the school unit’s devices, networks, Internet
and other services is a privilege, not a right. Unacceptable use/activity may result in suspension or
cancellation of privileges as well as additional disciplinary and/or legal action. The building school
administration shall have final authority to decide whether a student’s privileges will be denied or
revoked.

2. Acceptable Use: Student access to the school unit’s devices, networks, Internet and other services
are provided for educational purposes consistent with the school unit’s educational mission, curriculum
and instructional goals. The same rules and expectations govern student use of devices as apply to
other student conduct and communications. Students are further expected to comply with these rules
and all specific instructions from the teacher or other supervising staff member/volunteer when
accessing the school unit's devices, networks, Internet and other services. Students’ use of devices
and resources is provided for educational purposes.

3. Prohibited Use: The user is responsible for his/her actions and activities involving school unit
devices, networks, Internet and other services and for his/her device files, passwords and accounts.
Examples of unacceptable uses that are expressly prohibited include but are not limited to the
following: accessing inappropriate materials, illegal activities, violating copyrights, plagiarism, copying
software, misuse of passwords/unauthorized access malicious use/vandalism, inappropriate use of
social media, altering or bypassing device configurations, networks, and or filters. The user should not
use school technology to violate any school policy.

4. No Expectation of Privacy: The school unit retains control, custody and supervision of all devices,
networks and Internet services owned or leased by the school unit. The school unit reserves the right
to monitor all devices, Internet usage, networks and other activity by students. Students have no
expectations of privacy in their use of school devices or networks.

5. Compensation for Losses, Costs and/or Damages: The student and/or the student’s
parent/guardian shall be responsible for compensating the school unit for any losses, costs or
damages incurred by the school unit related to violations of policy and/or these rules, including
investigation of violations.

6. School Unit Assumes No Responsibility for Unauthorized Charges, Costs or lllegal Use:
The school unit assumes no responsibility for any unauthorized charges made by students including
but not limited to credit card charges, long distance telephone charges, equipment and line costs, or
for any illegal use of its devices such as copyright violations and or the downloading of illegal copyright
content.

7. Student Security: A student shall not reveal his/her full name, address or telephone number on
the Internet without prior permission from a supervising teacher. Students will not post pictures, either
their own or pictures of others, without proper permission. Students should never meet people they
have contacted through the Internet without parental permission. Students should inform their
supervising teacher if they access information or messages that are dangerous, inappropriate or make
them uncomfortable in any way.

1st Reading: 10/23/18
Adopted: 11/20/18; Revised:



CODE: IJNDB

8. System Security: The security of the school unit’s devices, networks, Internet and other services
is a high priority. Any user who identifies a security problem must notify an administrator. The user
shall not demonstrate the problem to others. Any user who attempts or causes a breach of system
security shall have his/her privileges revoked and may be subject to additional disciplinary and/or legal
action.

9. Parental Permission Required: Students in grades 7-12 and their parent/guardian are required
to sign and return the Device/Internet Use Acknowledgment Form before being allowed to use school
devices. Under normal school conditions, Sstudents in grades K-6 will have direct staff supervision.
There may be periods of time during a school year when we ask PK-6 students to take devices home.
The District may ask for a temporary device take-home agreement to be signed during these periods
of time.

D: Care of the Device:

Keep all food and drinks away from your device.

Once the device is issued to the student and his/her family, the student is responsible for it at all times.
Do not give your device to another student to use unless instructed by a staff member.

For take-home devices, chargers will be left and used at home, students are responsible for bringing
a fully charged device to school each day.
Do not physically mark up the device or its storage case (no writing on, stickers, etc.).

Your device must always be in the student's possession or locked in a secure location at all times. Do
not leave device or accessories in school lockers, the hallway, or gym overnight.

The device should never be left unattended.
When transporting the device, make sure it is always secured in the case at-al-times.
Keep the device clean by using a dry soft, non-abrasive cloth on the screen and keyboard.

Do not download unauthorized software without first getting authorization from designated RSU 19 IT
staff.

Do not use device for long term storage of personal material such as photos and videos.

When transporting the device and not in the carrying case or student book bag, ensure that the device
is closed and not picked up or moved via the screen.

It is the user’s sole responsibility to ensure that all data is backed up from the device in case the device
becomes inoperable for any reason.

E: Replacement Cost Information

Accidental repairs will be assessed the $35 repair deductible fee and the remaining cost will be covered by
the school district. The building school administration shall have final authority to determine the cause of the
incident and if it was accidental or negligence in nature.

1st Reading: 10/23/18
Adopted: 11/20/18; Revised:



CODE: IJNDB
tnthe-eventthat If the device or accessory item is lost or damaged as a result of user negligence or failure to
follow district policies and these laptop guidelines, the following sample costs will be the user's financial
responsibility. The stated costs below are just averages and may not be specific to every situation. The
building school administration shall have final authority to determine compensation.

Chromebooks

Carrying Case if supplied (Replacement) $30
Power Adapter (Lost) $45

Case Damage (Drops) $200

Screen Damage $200

Liquid Damage $365
Computer (Replacement) $365

Families who find these fees a financial burden can apply for a partial or total fee waiver. Application forms
can be picked up at each school’s main office. Repairs to school devices damaged intentionally or maliciously
may still be billed at their full amount per the discretion of the school administration.

F: Device Use and Behavior Guidelines:

1to1 Scenario, Shared Cart Scenario, Labs

For students if the device is damaged,
Step 1) They tell their teacher
Step 2) They complete the Hardware Log in office
Step 3) They connect with the Tech Department

Physical Use

Accidental Physical Breakage Minimum Intentional Physical Breakage
Guidelines
First Offense: Administration and parental involvement
e Deductible Fee or Repair Fee e Loss of device access
e Loss of device for time it takes to replace it e Bill sent to guardians
e Teacher/ Tech conference with student e Time frame: Loss of device access until bill
is paid in full
Second Offense: e Teachers and support staff notified of
e Deductible Fee or Repair Fee situation by administration
e Loss of device for time it takes to replace it e Supervised access to devices
e Additional loss of access for 2 weeks e Additional disciplinary action determined by
e Parent and admin involvement administration
e Additional disciplinary action determined by
administration

1st Reading: 10/23/18
Adopted: 11/20/18; Revised:




CODE: IJNDB

e Note: If a student intentionally damages

Third Offense: another student’s device, they incur the cost
e The 3rd accidentally damaged device is of the device they damaged and will lose
considered intentional damage. their own privileges.

Academic / Content Related Use

Students using devices for other non-academic purposes on school grounds

Loss of device for timeframe by

First Offense:

e Account Restricted OU (Organized Unit which allows student to continue to do school
work, however not access the internet) for 5 days

e Teachers notified
e Letter goes home (Parental contact)

Second Offense:
e Account Restricted OU for 1 month
e Parent comes into school for meeting

Third Offense:
e Account Restricted OU for remaining of school year
e Lose access to 1to1 device for the school year
e Administration involvement for the school year

e During the circumstance when a student must have a device to complete school work. A
temporary machine can be checked out as a loaner, however, this device must be returned to
the library on a daily basis.

Legal Reference: 20 USC§677 (Enhancing Education through Technology Act)
47 USC§254(h)(5) (Children’s Internet Protection Act)
47 CFR§54.52 (Children’s Internet Protection Act Certifications)
Federal Communications Commission Order and Report 11-125, (August 10, 2011)

Cross Reference: EGAD - Copyright Compliance
GCSA - Employee Computer and Internet Use
IUNDB-R - Student Computer and Internet Use Rules
IJND — Distance Learning Program

1st Reading: 10/23/18
Adopted: 11/20/18; Revised:



SECOND
READING

OF
POLICIES




CODE: GBO

FAMILY CARE LEAVE

This policy governs employee leave under 26 M.R.S.A. § 636, “An Act to Care for
Families,” referred to in this policy as the “Family Care Act.” Leave under this policy is
referred to as “Family Care Leave.”

The Board recognizes that under Maine’s “Family Care Act,” if an employer provides
paid leave under the terms of a collective bargaining agreement or employment-District
policy, the employer must allow an employee to use the paid leave for the care of an
immediate family member who is ill.

In law and for the purpose of this policy, the following definitions apply:

A. “Employer” means a public or private employer with 25 or more
employees.

B. “Immediate family member” means an employee’s child, spouse or parent.

C. “Paid leave” means time away from work by an employee for which the

employee receives compensation. Paid leave is limited to sick time,
vacation time, compensatory time, and leave that is provided as an
aggregate amount for use at the discretion of the employee for any of these
purposes. Paid leave does not include paid short-term or long-term
disability, catastrophic leave, or similar types of benefits.

Employees may take up to 480 40 hours of paid leave as Family Care Leave per 12-
month period or the amount provided by an applicable collective bargaining agreement,
whichever is greater.

The 12-month period consistent with the 12-month period identified for the school unit’s
administration of the Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA).}

An employee is not entitled to use paid leave until that leave has been earned. Any
employee electing to take Family Care Leave must apply such leave against available
paid personal leave and if personal leave is exhausted, against paid sick leave until all
paid leave available has been exhausted, except as otherwise provided in applicable
collective bargaining agreements.

Notice/verification of illness for Family Care Leave shall be the same as that required for
the employee’s own illness. The employee must specify that leave is being taken
pursuant to the Family Care Act.

1% Reading 05/19/09
Adopted: 06/16/09 1



CODE: GBO
Application of Family Medical Leave Requirements

For purposes of applying family medical leave requirements (i.e., FMLA), the
school unit shall treat leave under the Family Care Act in the same manner as the
employer treats leave for an employee illness. Therefore, Family Care leave and
FMLA leave shall run concurrently.

Legal Reference: 26 M.R.S.A. § 636

Cross Reference: ~ GBN - Family and Medical Leave

1% Reading 05/19/09
Adopted: 06/16/09 2



CODE: JLCC

COMMUNICABLE/INFECTIOUS DISEASES

Teachers shall be alert to signs of illness and communicable disease and refer students
who show such symptoms to the school nurse.

The Superintendent/school nurse shall be responsible for notifying the Maine Center
for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) of any student suspected of having a
communicable disease, the occurrence of which is required to be reported pursuant to
law and/or Maine Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) rules.

The building principal will be notified when a report of communicable disease has
been made.

Any student for whom the CDC has prescribed isolation or quarantine shall be
excluded from school and school activities.

Students who have other types of communicable diseases shall be excluded from school
and school activities as prescribed by law, or shall observe other protective procedures
according to recommendations issued by the school physician/school health
advisor/school nurse.

The Superintendent is encouraged to consult with the school nurse if a teacher
informs the Superintendent that he/she has reason to believe that a student is a public
health threat due to a communicable disease.

from-theattending physietanisrequired- A certificate from the student's health care
provider shall be required before a student who has had a "notifiable" communicable
disease may return to school or participate in school activities. The building principal
and/or the school nurse must give permission before the student is readmitted to class.

Alhon Adon 2 N a a
A Cl CrC Ci O

1st Reading:
Adopted:



CODE: JLCC

Legal Reference: 5 MRSA § 19201 et seq.
20-A MRSA §§ 1001(11)(A), 6301

22 MRSA §§ 801, 802, 806, 823, 824
Maine Dept. of Health and Human Services Rule Ch. 258(2015)

1st Reading:
Adopted:



REGIONAL SCHOOL UNIT 19

Ad Hoc Extra-Curricular Committee Minutes
October 5, 2020 6:00 PM
Zoom

Members Present: Chad Stratton, Bill McDonald, Robin McNeil, Jennifer Watson,
Veronica Nicholson, Rachel Nyce

Members Absent: None

Others Present: Mike Hammer, Angela Brown, Mark Babin, Gene Crockett, Laura
Donahue, Scott Finamore, Dean Neal, Mary Nadeau, Kelly Rowell

Recap of Last Fall and Winter Activities - Mark Babin and Gene Crocket gave
updates on last year's activities prior to the school year ending early due to
Covid-19.

Middle School Wrestling - Gene gave an overview of wrestling at the middle level
Presently the group uses our facility, has their own coach, has their own insurance,
etc. The recommendation is to work with the present group in the form of a “club”
and see what the interest is. This would include 5th-8th graders and they would
compete in their own weight class. This may increase the number of athletes
involved and help our high school team.

Activity Stipends - Mark suggested Cross Country for a varsity stipend as the
program has solid numbers and the team has competed as a club for 4 or 5 years
now.

He also recommended that fall cheering become a varsity stipend position as well.
Due to our restrictions there is less they can do; however, there is a lot of interest in
this sport.

Gene recommended that middle school have two stipends, an “A” and a “B” for golf.
This activity also allows 5th graders to compete. There are 30 golfers involved this
fall.

Mark and Gene suggested that stipends should be created for Unified Basketball at
the middle and high school level.



VL.

VILI.

VIIl.

All of these recommendations were approved by the Committee and will move to
the full Board and Finance Committee.

. Middle School Cross Country - Gene would like to have middle school cross

country start as a “club” team next fall.

Mid Maine Lacrosse for Middle School - MML has asked to have lacrosse as a
middle level sport. The associated costs need to be clearly defined as well as a
schedule of teams for RSU 19 to compete against. Gene will also need to see what
the level of interest would be to start this as a “club” event. We will invite Michele
Hubbard and other representatives of MML to our fall/early winter meeting to gather
more information.

Non-Athletic Extracurricular Activities - Chad was wondering what was going on
with other activities under our present conditions. Many have started or are starting
soon at both the middle and high school. Dean mentioned that there was a music
and drama combination for a “virtual” presentation for late fall. Clubs are meeting
virtually as well.

Other - Next meeting will be held after fall sports have ended.

Adjournment
The meeting was adjourned at approximately 7:45 pm.

Respectfully submitted,

Mike Hammer
Superintendent of Schools



MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT
BETWEEN
THE RSU 19 BOARD OF DIRECTORS
AND
THE RSU 19 EDUCATION ASSOCIATION/MEA/NEA

This Memorandum of Agreement is made and entered into by and between the RSU 19 Board of
Directors (the “Board”) and the RSU 19 Education Association/MEA/NEA (the “Association”)
(collectively, the “parties”).

WHEREAS, the parties are covered by the terms of a Collective Bargaining Agreement(s), and the
parties enter into the following Memorandum of Agreement as an addendum to the Collective
Bargaining Agreement(s) between RSU 19 Board of Directors and RSU 19 Teachers and Educational
Support Staff to address the specific impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on employees’ wages, hours,
and working conditions;

Whereas, the COVID-19 Pandemic presents unique and unprecedented challenges for students,
faculty, and administrators of RSU 19,

WHEREAS, the parties place the wellbeing of the employees, their students, and families at the
forefront of their decisions and agreements as they confront these challenges,

WHEREAS, The District sincerely appreciates the work that Faculty have done in recent months to
address the effects of the pandemic and prepare for the new school year,

THEREFORE, the parties agree to the terms set forth below:

1) RSU 19 will develop and publish a Pandemic Response Plan for reopening school in accordance
with directives from the Governor’s office, the Maine Department of Education (DOE), and the
Maine Centers for Disease Control (CDC) and the Maine Department of Emergency Management.
In accordance with this plan, In-person instruction may resume (in whole or in part) after the Maine
DOE, in partnership with CDC and MEMA, has determined it is safe based on markers per the
Maine Reopening Plan and after the District has met the DOE/CDC’s school capacity and
readiness markers.

2) The parties recognize that the developed plan must be flexible and able to be altered as the
situation changes and new information becomes known. The district agrees to meet and consult
with the Association and the parties will reach a consensus when substantial changes to the
plan are necessary. Employees will be notified of all changes in writing.

3) Faculty agree to the following enhanced or additional responsibilities in accordance with the
Plan:

a) Maintain accurate attendance records to assist in contact tracing, if necessary

b) Require students to adhere to safe practices as defined in the Plan

c) Clean instructional areas and instruct students on cleaning personal spaces

d) Notify their supervisor if they travel out-of-state or have contact with a potential COVID
infected individual



4)

e) Work with the administration and the students to assure academic continuity for students
who can not continue in-person instruction.
f) Notify their supervisor ifiwhen they see unsafe conditions, practices, or activities.

The Association and District will meet as needed to find a mutually acceptable resolution to
address situations that employees have identified as unsafe or unlawful conditions, practices, or
activities. Employees who refuse to work in unsafe or unlawful conditions or who refuse to engage
in unsafe or unlawful activities will not be retaliated against.

When teachers/students/staff are quarantined due to exposure to a positive COVID case, distance
learning will be implemented for those involved. Teachers/staff will not be required to use sick
leave during quarantine unless they become too ill to perform distance learning work remotely
from their own home. “Distance learning” is educational support in which the student and instructor
are in separate locations, including online instruction and assignments, take home packets, phone
calls, emails, text reminder applications, and other means of communication.

If it becomes necessary to modify classes/subjects to accommodate social distancing or
sanitation, the District will consult with the teacher(s) involved to create appropriate modifications
to increase student and staff safety.

All staff members shall be compensated their full salaries/wages and benefits for the regular
school year as if there had been no interruption, in accordance with the provisions of the collective
bargaining agreement between the Board and the Association.

*The parties recognize that the School Board has reduced the number of student days for the
2020-21 school year to 171 days, subject to an applicable waiver from the Department of
Education.

The parties agree to the following changes to the number of teacher workshop days and to when

workshop days will occur in 2020-21:

a) September 1-4, 2020 will now become teacher workshop days instead of student days.

b) The remainder of the 2020-21 school calendar as published shall remain the same. If the
Board is considering any further adjustments to the calendar the Board shall notify the
Association and meet and consult prior to making any changes in the school calendar.

All support staff, shall report and will be provided work or professional development on September
1-4, 2020. If no work or professional development is available, support staff shall suffer no loss of

pay.

10) In hybrid situations, all students will be remote on Wednesday’s. It is the intent of the Board and

Administration that Faculty will be available to meet with students for additional help, tutoring,
development of instructional plans, and other necessary functions for student success. While
there may be situations where an opportunity for professional development may be accessed on
Wednesdays, other than those already designated as workshop days in the calendar, these
should not become so frequent as to interfere with the student-centered efforts.

11) Staff members who coach or supervise extra-curricular co-curricular activities shall be paid

according to the percent of effert work required in a COVID-altered season. The Parties agree to
meet and consult on a case by case basis to determine these stipends.

2



12) In consultation with the Association and any affected employee, mutually acceptable
accommodations will be secured for staff at higher risk for severe consequences from COVID-19.
The District and Association will continue to address accommodation requests that arise. These
accommodations will be mutually acceptable to the employee, Association, and District.

13) Should the District make the decision to move to full distance learning, teachers will be given at
least two workdays to plan and prepare for the change.

14) The parties understand there may be a temporary need for new duties for staff members during
these circumstances in order to provide necessary services. Any new duties that are not
reasonably related to a staff member’s job, shall be assigned on a voluntary basis.

15) Caseloads for nurses, social workers, counselors, and therapists will be appropriate according to
state and professional requirements and guidelines regarding workload. The Association and
District will meet to find a mutually acceptable resolution if there are workload issues.

16) The District will clearly communicate any changes necessary to meet IEP obligations due to
COVID-19. The District will provide staff training and appropriate technologies and learning
materials to ensure student needs are addressed. The Parties agree to work collaboratively to
develop a fluid, remote instructional plan that provides flexibility for both the educators (teacher or
educational technician) and the learners that allows for educational continuity.

17) Employees will not be held responsible for unauthorized use or distribution of any distance
learning content to unauthorized users or social media. If Employees become aware of such use
or distribution, they will notify their administrator.

18) It is understood that if District employees perform distance learning from their home, in some
cases, an employee’s family member may inadvertently interrupt the lesson or distract students
(for instance, background conversations). Employees shall not be disciplined for actions of
employees’ household members that may be witnessed or heard by students.

19) It is expected that teachers and educational technicians working remotely shall be available to
students and parents throughout the regular school day based on the normal schedule of the
building they work in.

20) Employees should not provide personal cell phone numbers or email addresses in
communications with parents or students. Employees should use their district email address and
district associated video conferencing programs for conferences with parents or students.

21) Evaluations will be suspended until the District's TEPG Steering Committee can make appropriate
modifications (i.e. criteria, standards, student participation, student of record, timelines, etc.) to the
TEPG system.

22) Virtual staff meetings, if needed, shall be held in accordance with the collective bargaining
agreement. The District will provide sufficient notice to employees.

23) There will be no reduction-in-force due to changes in workload or financial constraints caused
by COVID or associated remote learning.



24) It is understood that all provisions of the collective bargaining agreements between the Board
and the Association shall remain in full force and effect except to the extent such provisions
have been modified by this Agreement.

25) The parties agree this Memorandum is a one-time Agreement to address extraordinary
circumstances and shall not establish a precedent or practice for any future agreements. It shall
not be cited by either party in any proceeding except to enforce the terms of the Agreement.

26) This Agreement shall expire on August 31, 2021 but may be extended by mutual written
agreement of the parties. The parties agree to meet at least once each month or upon request to
discuss issues, concerns, and successes regarding matters outlined in this Agreement.

Dated this th day of , 2020.
By: (School District) By: (Education Association)
Its: School Board Chair or designee Its: President



	ADP8965.tmp
	G.    Employee Notice Requirement
	H.    Medical Certification
	I.  Notice for Leave Due to Active Duty or Call to Active Duty of Family Member
	K. Insurance
	M.    Special Rules for Instructional Employees
	N.    Interaction with Maine Law
	0. Recordkeeping

	GBO Family Care Leave REV.pdf
	FAMILY CARE LEAVE

	ADP93E5.tmp
	THE RSU 19 BOARD OF DIRECTORS
	AND
	THE RSU 19 EDUCATION ASSOCIATION/MEA/NEA





